


Adopted:  February 13, 2003 – As Written 

CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 
 

MINUTES 
 

JANUARY 30, 2003 
 

A meeting of the Conway Planning Board was held on Thursday, January 30, 2003 beginning at 
7:00 p.m. at the Conway Town Office in Center Conway, NH.  Those present were:  Chair, 
Sheila Duane; Vice Chair, Robert Drinkhall; Secretary, Conrad Briggs; Brian Glynn; Martha 
Tobin; David Robinson; Planning Director, Thomas Irving; and Recording Secretary, Holly 
Meserve. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – PETITIONED ARTICLE 147-19.D.1.(b) – WALL SIGNS 
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:01 p.m. Dot Seybold appeared before the Board.  Ms. 
Seybold stated that the situation and the buildings at Settler’s Green are unique to Conway.  Ms. 
Seybold stated that she rode through Town looking to see what this proposed amendment would 
effect and there are not many places.  Ms. Seybold stated that she found only a few places in 
Town that could take advantage of the proposed ordinance.  Ms. Seybold stated that in their 
situation the signs would end up being 24 feet from the undisturbed ground.  Ms. Duane asked if 
this proposal would bring the signs into scale with the buildings.  Ms. Seybold answered in the 
affirmative.  Ms. Seybold showed a few computer-generated sign situations at Settler’s Green; 
showing where the signs are located now and where the signs would be located under the 
proposed amendment.   
 
Mr. Briggs stated that it sounds like spot zoning.  Mr. Irving stated that it is not specific to this 
site, it would be a town wide ordinance, and therefore, it is not spot zoning.  Mr. Irving stated 
having signs that are appropriately proportioned to the building is a good idea.  Mr. Briggs asked 
if this ordinance would accomplish that.  Mr. Irving stated that it appears to.  Ms. Tobin stated 
that this is not changing the size of the sign.  Ms. Seybold agreed.   
 
Mr. Briggs made a motion, seconded by Mr. Drinkhall, to endorse the petitioned article to 
amend Article 147-19.D.1.(b) on the Town Warrant.  Ms. Duane asked for public comment; 
Catherine Woodall asked if this would allow signs to be visible from the North South road.  Ms. 
Seybold stated that she could not think of any sign that would.  Ms. Woodall asked about the 
highway corridor district.  Mr. Irving stated that that is further away from this site then the 
North-South Road.  Mr. Glynn stated that he thinks it a shame to ruin the architecture of a 
building for the height of the sign.  Ms. Duane asked for any other public comment; there was 
none.  The public hearing was closed at 7:16 p.m.  Motion unanimously carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT 147-7.C. – VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:17 p.m.  Mr. Irving stated that the principal purpose of this is 
amendment is to have the authority as listed in the RSA.  Ms. Duane asked for public comment; 
Catherine Woodall asked if the wording in RSA 676:17 is specifically stated in the proposed 
amendment.  Mr. Irving stated that the Town attorney worked on this amendment and it is 



Adopted:  February 13, 2003 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 30, 2003 

consistent with the RSA.  Ms. Woodall asked if an application were to go to court would it be a 
misdemeanor or a felony.  Mr. Irving stated that these are the regulations the Town could follow 
if court proceedings are necessary.   Ms. Woodall asked under section (3) if once the property 
owner is notified another written notice would not be necessary.  Mr. Irving stated that a lot of 
the language was taken forbadeum from RSA 676:17 and changed only to indicate the Town of 
Conway.  The public hearing was closed at 7:21.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall made a motion, seconded by Mr. Glynn, that the amendment to Article 147-
7.C as written be submitted to the Town Clerk to be posted to the Town Warrant subject to 
legal review.  Motion unanimously carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT 147-11.A.(1) – RESIDENTIAL/AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT – PERMITTED USES 
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:22 p.m.  Ms. Duane read the proposed amendment.  Mr. 
Irving stated that this is to clarify and remove some confusing language.  Mr. Irving stated that it 
currently reads that an owner occupied tourist home or lodging house is allowed as a home 
occupation and that is not the case.  Ms. Duane asked for public comment; there was none.  The 
public hearing was closed at 7:23 p.m.  Ms. Tobin made a motion, seconded by Mr. 
Drinkhall, that the amendment to Article 147-11.A.(1) as written be submitted to the Town 
Clerk to be posted to the Town Warrant subject to legal review.  Motion unanimously 
carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT 147-11.3 – VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 
– PERMITTED USES 
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:24 p.m.  Ms. Duane read the proposed amendment.  Mr. 
Irving stated that this is the same as Article 147-11.A.(1).  Ms. Duane asked if there were any 
board comments; there was none.  Ms. Duane asked if there was any public comment; there were 
none.  The public hearing was closed at 7:25 p.m.  Mr. Briggs made a motion, seconded by 
Ms. Tobin, that the amendment to 147-11.3 as written be submitted to the Town Clerk to 
be posted to the Town Warrant subject to legal review.  Motion unanimously carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT 147-13.1.B.(4) – GROUNDWATER PROTECTION 
OVERLAY DISTRICT 
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:26 p.m.  Mr. Irving stated that this was a housekeeping issue 
only.  Ms. Duane asked for Board comments; there were none.  Ms. Duane asked for public 
comment; there was none.  The public hearing was closed at 7:27 p.m.  Mr. Briggs made a 
motion, seconded by Ms. Tobin, that the amendment to Article 147-13.1.B.(4) as written be 
submitted to the Town Clerk to be posted to the Town Warrant subject to legal review.  
Motion unanimously carried. 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 6 



Adopted:  February 13, 2003 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 30, 2003 

PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT 147-14 – FLOODPLAIN CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT 
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:28 p.m.  Mr. Irving stated that the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment suggested this amendment because the words “beneficial purpose” were not defined.  
Ms. Duane asked for Board comments; there was none.  Ms. Duane asked for public comment; 
there was none.  The public hearing was closed at 7:29 p.m. Mr. Briggs made a motion, 
seconded by Ms. Tobin, that the amendment to Article 147-14 as written be submitted to 
the Town Clerk to be posted to the Town Warrant subject to legal review.  Motion 
unanimously carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT 147-19.G.(1) – SIGN LIGHTING 
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:30 p.m.  Mr. Irving stated that there was a concern with light 
pollution and signs being lit from below.  Mr. Irving stated that it was suggested that the lighting 
should be affixed to the sign itself and facing down to prevent it from going up into the sky.  Mr. 
Irving stated that it was also suggested that the type of light should be changed to prevent light 
pollution.   Ms. Duane asked for public comment; Charlene Browne asked about the glare from 
the lights that are pointing down.  Mr. Irving stated that there is still a regulation that does not 
allow light to leave the property.  Ms. Woodall stated she doesn’t see why it cannot be lit from 
below.  Ms. Duane stated that this is to prevent light pollution.   
 
Ms. Woodall stated that Ceramco in Center Conway is a perfect example of what we don’t want.  
Ms. Browne asked about the danger issue.  Luigi Bartolomeo stated that the lights that come up 
from the bottom of the sign are at the same height as headlights.  Mr. Irving read the proposed 
ordinance.  Earl Sires, Conway Town Manager, stated that he applauds the Boards effort in 
dealing with this issue.  Mr. Irving stated that this is to deal with the light that is shining into the 
sky.  Ms. Woodall asked about the grandfathering.  Ms. Duane stated that the lights that are there 
today will remain and this amendment will affect any new signs in the future. The public hearing 
was closed at 7:43 p.m.  Mr. Drinkhall made a motion, seconded by Ms. Tobin, that the 
amendment to 147-19.G.(1) as written be submitted to the Town Clerk to be posted to the 
Town Warrant subject to legal review.  Motion unanimously carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT 147-15.E.(3) – ACCESSORY DWELLING 
 
The public hearing was opened at 7:44 p.m.   Ed Poliquin, Luigi Bartolomeo and Gina Hale of 
the Housing Committee appeared before the Board.  Ms. Duane read the proposed ordinance.  
Ms. Duane stated since this amendment was posted to a public hearing, the Housing Committee 
had another meeting and made some changes.  Ms. Duane read the proposed ordinance with the 
new changes.  Ms. Duane referred to the application and stated that a fee is going to be required 
because the Town of Conway does not currently inspect one- or two-family homes nor do they 
have a provision in our ordinances to do such inspections.  Ms. Duane stated that this application 
would require the contractor’s signature and the electrician and plumber licenses on the 
application.  Ms. Duane stated that this is the best safety net that we can provide to make this as 
safe as possible for the tenants.   
 

Page 3 of 6 



Adopted:  February 13, 2003 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 30, 2003 

Mr. Bartolomeo stated in regard to safety, we expect the areas above garages to be converted, 
which is a high danger area, so we believe the application to be a good move.  Mr. Poliquin 
stated that this is a way of monitoring the construction.  Mr. Briggs asked if this ensures that a 
professional will construct this second unit.  Mr. Poliquin answered in the affirmative.  Mr. Sires 
thanked the committee and members of the Planning Board for working on this amendment.  Mr. 
Sires stated that the fee allows the Town to contract out the inspection if staff is too busy.  Mr. 
Sires stated that the intent is that the main structure is to be owner-occupied.   
 
Charlene Browne asked why is this a special exception and not just allowed in the zoning 
ordinance.  Mr. Irving stated if it is permitted as a right in the zoning ordinance then the Zoning 
Board of Adjustment (ZBA) will not get the change to look at the infrastructure or make sure the 
change to the structure is consistent with the neighborhood.  Mr. Irving stated that there also 
would not be an opportunity for the Town to make sure that license professionals are doing the 
work.  Ms. Browne stated that this is putting a different role onto the ZBA.  Ms. Browne asked if 
you have to submit architectural drawings and asked how do you determine sufficient parking.  
Ms. Duane stated that the committee felt this addressed the issue regarding parking.  Ms. Browne 
asked if they have to submit architectural drawings.  Mr. Bartolomeo stated that this is residential 
and the committee deliberalitly left it loose so the homeowner could submit just a photograph.  
Ms. Browne stated that she doesn’t see how the homeowner could meet that regulation.   
 
Catherine Woodall stated that she doesn’t see a size restriction.  Mr. Irving stated that it is in the 
definition of accessory dwelling.  Mr. Briggs asked how this amendment affects a large house 
and converting it to a duplex.  Ms. Duane stated that this wouldn’t apply to that situation.   Bob 
Bell asked what is the sufficient amount of land.  Mr. Irving explained the required density 
requirements.  Ms. Woodall stated that this amendment would increase density.  Mr. Irving 
agreed.  Ms. Woodall asked how other under lying districts that have restrictions would affect 
this amendment.  Mr. Irving stated that you have to conform to the restrictions in the underlying 
districts.  Ms. Woodall asked if the lake shoreline protection district would be affected and 
would the lake still be protected.  Mr. Irving stated that he believes the shoreline protection 
would apply and stay in place. The public hearing was closed at 7:58 p.m.   
 
Ms. Duane stated because there have been substantial changes to the proposed amendment so 
another public hearing is needed.  Ms. Tobin made a motion, Mr. Glynn, to continue the 
public hearing for the proposed amendment Article 147-15.E.(2) until February 13, 2003.  
Motion unanimously carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT 147-6 – DEFINITION – ACCESSORY 
DWELLING  
 
The public hearing was opened at 8:00 p.m. Ms. Duane read the definition. Ms. Duane asked for 
Board comments; there was none.  Ms. Duane asked for public comment; there was none.  The 
public hearing was closed at 8:01 p.m.  Ms. Tobin made a motion, seconded by Mr. Glynn, 
that the amendment to 147-6, definition of Accessory Dwelling, as written be submitted to 
the Town Clerk to be posted to the Town Warrant subject to legal review.  Motion 
unanimously carried. 
 

Page 4 of 6 



Adopted:  February 13, 2003 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 30, 2003 

PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDEMENT 147-15.E.(2) – INCREASE IN DENSITY 
 
The public hearing was opened at 8:02 p.m.  Ms. Duane read the proposed ordinance.  Ms. 
Duane stated that this amendment also went back to the Housing Committee after it was posted 
to a public hearing.  Ms. Duane read the proposed ordinance with the new changes.  Mr. Poliquin 
stated that the NH Housing Authority had an active role in this community a long time ago and 
was able to get some decent apartments built.  Mr. Poliquin stated since that time there has been 
nothing built as those developers are now in there 60’s.  Mr. Poliquin stated that he asked those 
same developers if they would be interested in doing this type of project now and they said no.  
Mr. Poliquin stated that you need a young person.   
 
Mr. Poliquin stated that the density requirement just doesn’t allow for this type of development 
to take place today.  Mr. Poliquin stated that sewer allows you not to put in septic systems, which 
prevents the contamination of ground water.  Mr. Poliquin stated that the NCWP has the capacity 
and not a lot coming in. Mr. Poliquin looked at other Towns and they all seemed to be in the 12 
units per acre range.  Mr. Poliquin stated that you still have to meet the greenspace, parking and 
other requirements of the town.  Mr. Poliquin stated that 12 units per acre may not be able to be 
accomplished on an acre of land, but it is very close.  Mr. Poliquin stated if some housing 
authority wanted to come in this would allow them to do it.   
 
Mr. Poliquin stated that the rents in the area cannot get these buildings built and to code.  Mr. 
Poliquin stated that the cost of building an apartment is very high.  Mr. Poliquin stated that we 
should allow the developer to sell 75% of the units to be able to pay down the note.  Mr. Poliquin 
stated this would allow keeping some of those units in the rental pool.  Ms. Duane stated this is 
from a developer’s standpoint.  Mr. Poliquin stated that you have to have more density to make 
the project feasible and to do that you need sewer and water.  Mr. Poliquin stated that the amount 
of land required now, it is impossible to do.  Mr. Robinson stated that building in a higher 
density wouldn’t decrease cost.  Mr. Irving stated having more density on a smaller piece of land 
lowers the cost of the land but it still doesn’t make it feasible and you would have to sell them all 
to make a profit.  Ms. Duane stated that this self finances the remaining 25% of the units.  Ms. 
Duane stated that this is an investment; he’ll have the rents and something to sell in twenty years.   
 
Mr. Poliquin stated if you just increase the density no one is going to build apartments, they are 
going to build units and just sell them.  Mr. Poliquin stated that there are areas in town where 
they are currently taking microwaves putting them in old hotel rooms and renting them for $750 
a month.  Mr. Poliquin stated that this is not the way to live.  Mr. Briggs stated that he is in favor 
of increased density but questioned (b) and how that affects the Town.  Mr. Sires stated that this 
is an incentive approach and not a regulatory approach.  Mr. Sires stated that this gives you 
something to make it feasible.  Mr. Sires stated that there are not a lot of regulatory issues here.  
Mr. Sires asked if it is perfect and he stated no, but it is a good approach.  Mr. Sires stated that it 
should move forward and let the town act on it.  Mr. Irving stated that this is subject to all 
building codes, Planning Board regulations and zoning.  
 
Ms. Duane asked for public comment; Ms. Browne stated that she is concerned with the 
preservation of the village and asked what mechanism is in place to preserve land in the village.  
Mr. Poliquin stated that the best use in the village is for shopping because you’re not going to get 

Page 5 of 6 



Adopted:  February 13, 2003 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – JANUARY 30, 2003 

Page 6 of 6 

that kind of money out of apartments.  Mr. Bartolomeo stated what comes into play here is a 
mixed use, retail below with living above.  Ms. Browne asked if this would take care of itself.  
Mr. Irving stated that we currently don’t have anything on the books to prevent someone from 
leveling the buildings in the villages.  Ms. Browne asked what is in place to encourage multiple 
uses.  Ms. Duane stated if you look at our ordinances today they are a one-size fits all.  Ms. 
Duane stated under today’s regulations an Olive Garden could buy up the land, tear down the 
buildings and build something new; that is more depressing.  Ms. Duane stated that in the future 
our site plan regulations are going to fit the district and not a one size fits all.   
 
Ms. Woodall stated that this was originally workforce housing and it does not do that now.  Ms. 
Woodall stated that this will be good for the developer, but it will not be good for the Town.   
Ms. Woodall stated that this would increase the density.  Ms. Duane stated that the Town did not 
want to create a housing committee and this is a way to make more marketable units.  Mr. 
Bartolomeo stated that the maximum is 1,000 square feet and will not demand a high rent and, 
therefore, feeds into the workforce housing.  Ms. Hale stated they went for the supply and 
demand; if you supply the apartments the rent will go down.  Ms. Browne asked why this is only 
allowed in the commercial district and not in the residential/agricultural district.  Ms. Duane 
stated that if you have to provide water and sewer on-site to prevent driving the costs up.   
 
Mr. Irving stated the reason to contain to the commercial is because they already have the 
infrastructure to handle this.  Mr. Bartolomeo stated that this is a sprawl issue and greater density 
in smaller areas conserves the outlying land.  Mr. Bartolomeo stated that Ms. Browne is 
advocating sprawl and that is what we don’t want to advocate.  Mr. Briggs asked if this would 
allow this low cost housing to occur.  Mr. Poliquin answered in the affirmative.  Ms. Woodall 
stated that the multi-use in the village is a good idea and that is good housing and thought that 
would be good for work force housing instead of increasing the density.  The public hearing was 
closed at 8:39 p.m.  Mr. Drinkhall made a motion, seconded by Mr. Glynn, to continue the 
public hearing for the proposed amendment Article 147-15.E.(2) until February 13, 2003.  
Motion unanimously carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Holly L. Meserve 
Recording Secretary 
 
 
 








































	PUBLIC HEARING – PETITIONED ARTICLE 147-19.D.1.(b) – WALL SIGNS
	PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT 147-7.C. – VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES
	PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT 147-19.G.(1) – SIGN LIGHTING
	PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDMENT 147-15.E.(3) – ACCESSORY DWELLING
	PUBLIC HEARING – AMENDEMENT 147-15.E.(2) – INCREASE IN DENSITY

